
 
 

 

 

 

 

FREEPORT CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting Agenda  

Tuesday, May 28, 2013 

Freeport City Hall 

7:00 P.M. 

7:00 P.M. I.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

  II.  OPEN PUBLIC FORUM 

 

1 minute III.  CONSENT AGENDA – (One motion, option to remove any item for further discussion) 

A. Approval of the agenda 

B. Approval of the minutes from the April 30, 2013 Regular Meeting 

C. Approval of the minutes from the May 11, 2013 Special Meeting 

D. Approval of the claims distributed April 30, 2013 through May 14, 2013 

E. Other 

 

5 minutes IV.  OLD BUSINESS 

A. Keith Fischer special assessment mediation 

B. Hiring of an Administrative Assistant 

C. Other 

  

25 minutes V.  NEW BUSINESS 

A. Public Hearing: Whirlwind Building Components  

B. Resolution 2013-016 (contingent upon Sheriff approval) 

C. Resolution 2013-017 (Minor Subdivision Request for 104 2nd St NE) 

D. Resolution 2013-018 (Minor Subdivision Request: 107 4th St NW) 

E. Wellhead Protection Plan 

F. Replacing lawnmower 

G. Open Meeting Law 

H. Other 

 

20 minutes VI.  REPORTS 

A. City Engineer – Scott Lange & Dave Blommel, S.E.H. 

B. Public Works Director– Jon Stueve 

C. Clerk-Treasurer – Mason Schirmer 

D. Other 

 

1 minute VII.  ADJOURNMENT   

 

Next Meeting:  June 25, 2013 at 7:00 PM 



 

 

FREEPORT CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

April 30, 2013 

 

A regular meeting of the Freeport City Council was convened at 6:00 P.M. by Mayor Matt 

Worms with Council Members Ron Ritter, Carrie Goebel and Ken Goebel in attendance (Rodney 

Atkinson arrived after meeting convened). 

 

Also in attendance: Jeff Johnson, Kathy Korte, Carol Moorman, Gary Eisenschenk, Linus 

Bonfig, Audrey Blommel and Keith Blommel. 

 

Staff in attendance: Mason Schirmer, Noah Van Beck, Dave Blommel and Ashley Feldewerd.   

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was said by those in attendance. 

 

RECESS TO ANNUAL LOCAL BOARD OF APPEAL AND EQUALIZATION 

Eisenschenk presented an appraisal of his property (Parcel 54.32122.0000) and requested that the 

estimated market value be reduced from $110,500 to $90,000, a decrease of $20,500 (18.55%). 

Johnson reviewed the private appraisal and identified pros and cons to using the appraisal to 

establish valuation. Johnson said the comparable properties used in the appraisal included 

properties outside of Freeport, properties with varying acreage and properties with differing 

house designs.     

 

Council Member Rodney Atkinson arrived at 6:20 P.M. 

 

Atkinson moved and Ritter seconded a motion to approve a reduction in the market value of 

Parcel 54.32122.0000 from $110,500 to $90,000. Motion carried 5-0. 

 

Bonfig raised questions regarding two parcels (54.32017.0000 and 54.32206.0000). No changes 

were made to either parcel. 

 

Worms moved and K. Goebel seconded a motion to adjourn the meeting of the local board of 

appeal and equalization. Motion carried 5-0. 

 

Worms called a five minute recess and reopened the regular meeting at 6:59 P.M. 

 

OPEN PUBLIC FORUM 

No public comment was provided. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

C. Goebel moved and Ritter seconded a motion approving the Consent Agenda which included 

the following: Approval of the agenda; approval of the minutes from the March 26, 2013 Regular 

Council Meeting and approval of the claims distributed March 26, 2013 through April 15, 2013. 

Motion carried 5-0.  

 

 



 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

No old business was discussed. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Approval of hiring two new Fire Fighters 

Freeport Fire Department Chief Noah Van Beck presented two new applicants for the Freeport 

Fire Department. K. Goebel moved and C. Goebel seconded a motion approving the hiring of 

Gary Schmitz and Wesley David as Fire Fighters. Motion carried 5-0. 

 

Replacement of Administrative Assistant 

Schirmer recommended the hiring of an Administrative Assistant. Schirmer said the process of 

advertising the position, interviewing candidates and starting a new employee may take as long 

as two months. Feldewerd agreed with the recommendation. K. Goebel and C. Goebel seconded 

a motion authorizing the hiring of an Administrative Assistant. Motion carried 5-0. 

 

Other 

K. Goebel said Bud Heidgerken is asking for volunteers to help with street closures during the 

upcoming summer parade. Worms suggested inquiring about assistance from the Sheriff’s 

Department. 

 

REPORTS 

City Engineer, S.E.H. – Dave Blommel 

Atkinson asked Blommel about the condition of the rip-rap lining the wastewater ponds. 

Atkinson said the water levels indicate a potential change in retaining wall elevation. Worms 

commented that repairs had been made approximately five years ago. Blommel said that as long 

as the water level does not exceed the rip-rap, there is likely no concern. Worms asked Blommel 

to inspect the ponds to verify there is no cause for concern. Blommel said he would inspect the 

pond. 

 

City Clerk/Treasurer’s Report, Mason Schirmer 

Schirmer said the LMCIT recently settled a claim for an accident that happened during the recent 

snowfall. Schirmer said he will be including the Wellhead Protection Plan in the next council 

meeting packet for review and approval. Schirmer said the Department of Employment and 

Economic Development (DEED) is requesting the city to hold a public hearing regarding the 

closing of the 2006 DEED funding project that involved Whirlwind Building Components. K. 

Goebel moved and C. Goebel seconded a motion to schedule a public hearing on Tuesday, May 

28, 2013 starting at 7:00pm as per the request of DEED. Motion carried 5-0. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

At 7:34 P.M. Worms moved and K. Goebel seconded a motion to adjourn the regular meeting. 

Motion carried 5-0. 

 

 

 

___________________________   ___________________________ 

Mason Schirmer, City Clerk      Matthew H. Worms, Mayor 



 

 

FREEPORT CITY COUNCIL 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

May 11, 2013 

 

A special meeting of the Freeport City Council was convened at 7:00 A.M. by Mayor Matt 

Worms with Council Members Ron Ritter, Carrie Goebel, Ken Goebel and Rodney Atkinson. 

 

Also in attendance: Tim Hennen and Jim Obermiller. 

 

Staff in attendance: Mason Schirmer.   

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was said by those in attendance. 

 

OPEN PUBLIC FORUM 

No public comment was provided. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: HENNER LUMBER VARIANCE REQUEST 

Worms moved and K. Goebel seconded a motion to open the public hearing regarding Hennen 

Lumber variance request. Motion carried 5-0. Public hearing opened at 7:01 A.M. 

 

Schirmer presented council with the Hennen Lumber building permit application and variance 

request to allow the construction of a new 30’x68’ building at 204 East Main Street. Schirmer 

said the proposed building would infringe upon current front and rear setbacks. Schirmer 

presented a staff report and proposed resolution from the City Planner, Municipal Development 

Group, Inc. The report stated review from the County as well as the City Engineer should be 

considered prior to approval of a variance. Schirmer stated Jeff Miller, Assistant County 

Highway Engineer, stated “Stearns County Highway Department has not objections to the 

proposed layout of a new 30’x68’ shed that will be no closer to the road than other existing 

structures. No additional accesses will be permitted.”  Schirmer said according to David 

Blommel, City Engineer, Hennen Lumber will need to apply to the Sauk River Watershed 

District for permission due to the nature of the east side of the lot and that “there is a permanent 

easement for a sanitary sewer that is located behind the curb; in the future, if the City needs to 

maintain the sewer, he [Tim Hennen of Hennen Lumber] will be responsible for any restoration 

to improvements made within the easement area (typically landscaping or parking). 

 

Hennen said the lot is seventy-five feet wide, the building is thirty feet wide, the distance the 

building will be from the front property line is thirty-one feet and the distance the building will 

be from the rear property line is fourteen feet. Hennen also said Hennen Lumber truck loading 

and unloading at the new building will be done off the county road and that the new building will 

prohibit other trucks from using the lot to turn their vehicles around, in-turn making travel along 

the county road safer. 

 

C. Goebel moved and K. Goebel seconded a motion to approve RESOLUTION 2013-015, A 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A VARIANCE OF THIRTEEN FEET REDUCTING THE 

REQUIRED FORTY FOOT FRONT YARD SETBACK TO TWENTY-SEVEN FEET AND A 

VARIANCE OF SIX FEET REDUCING THE REQUIRED TWENTY FOOT REAR 



 

 

SETBACK TO FOURTEEN FEET IN THE I-1 GENERAL INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT TO 

ALLOW CONSTRUCTION OF AN ACCESSORY BUILDING AT 204 EAST MAIN 

STREET. Motion carried 5-0. 

 

Other 

Schirmer said he will be out of the office on 5/16/13 to visit the capital to meet with Freeport’s 

Legislators. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

At 7:15 A.M. Worms moved and K. Goebel seconded a motion to adjourn the regular meeting. 

Motion carried 5-0. 

 

 

 

___________________________   ___________________________ 

Mason Schirmer, City Clerk      Matthew H. Worms, Mayor 



















memo 

 

City of Freeport 

To: City Council 

From: Mason Schirmer 

Date: 5/22/2013 

Re: Keith Fischer Special Assessment – Court Ordered Mediation 

Comments: 
 

The following was received from Rinke Noonan: 
 
“The parties have been ordered by the Court to attempt mediating this dispute prior to a court 
trial.  We have a mediator, Thomas Jovanovich, who is a local attorney that does some 
municipal work for other cities so he is going to be familiar with the special assessment 
process.  Below are optional dates for mediation: 
 
June 10 
June 24 
June 26 
 
Whoever attends the mediation should have authority to negotiate in good faith if an offer is 
made that the council would find reasonable. Final approval would still require Council 
approval.” 
 

  



memo 

 

City of Freeport 

To: City Council 

From: Mason Schirmer 

Date: 5/22/2013 

Re: Administrative Assistant Hiring Update 

Comments: 
 

As of Thursday, May 23, 2013, 16 applications have been received. 
 
Tentative Hiring Process and Schedule: 
May 31

st
 – City officially closes the position 

Week of June 3
rd

 – Jon Stueve and myself will review applications and schedule interviews 
Week of June 10

th
 – Jon Stueve and myself will interview candidates 

Week of June 7
th

 – Conduct 2
nd

 interviews if needed 
June 25

th
 – I will present Council will the top candidate(s) for approval 

 
Goal is to have Administrative Assistant start immediately. 
 

  



City of Freeport, Minnesota 

Resolution 2013-016 

 
Liquor Licenses 

 

It is hereby resolved by the City of Freeport, Minnesota that: 
 

WHEREAS; the City of Freeport Ordinance 1200 regulates licensing of liquor establishments in the City of Freeport;  

THEREFORE; Freeport City Council approves the renewal of the following licenses subject to the terms set forth in 

Minnesota Statutes and Freeport City Code 1200 for the period of July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014: 

 

 

Licensee Name:  Freeport Black Sox Inc. 

Trade Name:   Freeport Black Sox 

Licensed Premise:  1000 1
st
 Avenue South 

License(s) Approved: 3.2% On sale 

 

Licensee Name:  Ackie’s Pioneer Inn Inc. 

Trade Name:   Ackies Pioneer Inn 

Licensed Premise:  123 Main Street East (includes outdoor patio area) 

License(s) Approved: Combination License: Off Sale, On Sale, Sunday 

 

Licensee Name:  Freeport Softball Club Inc. 

Trade Name:   Freeport Recreational Club 

Licensed Premise:  307 7
th
 Street Southeast 

License(s) Approved: On Sale, Sunday 

 

Licensee Name:  Middendorf, Janet Mae 

Trade Name:   Corner Pub & Grill 

Licensed Premise:  103 1
st
 Avenue North 

License(s) Approved: Combination License: Off Sale, On Sale, Sunday 

 

 

Adoption by the City Council of the City of Freeport on this 28
th

 day of May, 2013. 

 

 

 

               ____________________________________ 

                       Matthew Worms, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:         

 

         ____________________________________ 

                                                  Mason Schirmer, Clerk-Treasurer 









18

4

Extremely low Low Moderate Non-LMI

40

Yes No Yes No

3.49$       52.88$    

4

Extremely low Low Moderate Non-LMI

40

Yes No Yes No

3.49$       24.04$    

4

Extremely low Low Moderate Non-LMI

40

Yes No Yes No

3.49$       24.04$    

Extremely low Low Moderate Non-LMI

40

Yes No Yes No

3.49$       19.23$    

Extremely low Low Moderate Non-LMI

40

Yes No Yes No

3.49$       13.50$    

Extremely low Low Moderate Non-LMI

40

Yes No Yes No

3.49$       14.42$    

Extremely low Low Moderate Non-LMI

40

Yes No Yes No

3.49$       13.00$    

Extremely low Low Moderate Non-LMI

40

Yes No Yes No

15.00$    

Extremely low Low Moderate Non-LMI

40

Yes No Yes No

13.50$    

Extremely low Low Moderate Non-LMI

40

Yes No Yes No

3.49$       16.00$    

Extremely low Low Moderate Non-LMI

40

Yes No Yes No

3.49$       12.65$    

Extremely low Low Moderate Non-LMI

40

Yes No Yes No

3.49$       36.06$    

Sales   

Sales  

Operator   

Operator   

Shipping Clerk 

Sales 

Compslsi  

Inv. Control  

Compslsi   

SECTION TWO: ACTIVITY BENEFICIARIES

Job Recipients                                                                             

Please list the number of job recipients 

under each column. Asian & 

White

 Black / 

African 

American & 

White

American Indian / 

Alaskan Native & 

Black / African 

American

Other 

Multi-

Racial

Asian / 

Pacific 

Islander Hispanic

Black / 

African 

American Asian

Total

White

Hispanic

American 

Indian / 

Alaskan 

Native & 

American 

Indian / 

Alaskan 

Native

 Native Hawaiian / 

Other Pacific Islander

SECTION THREE: JOB CREATION AND BENEFIT TO LMI PERSONS

1. Job Title 2. Type of 

Job 

Created * 

(See 

Below)

Hourly 

Value of 

Benefits

Hourly 

Wage

Total Hourly Compensation 

(combined value of benefits 

and hourly wage)

3. LMI Determination (select only one) Total 

Weekly 

Hours

Was this person 

unemployed prior to 

taking this job?

Does this person 

receive employer 

sponsored health care 

benefits?

56.37$                                    

27.53$                                    

27.53$                                    

22.72$                                    

16.99$                                    

17.91$                                    

16.49$                                    

15.00$                                    

13.50$                                    

Driver 19.49$                                    

16.14$                                    Rec. Clerk  

39.55$                                    Super 

Non-LMI



Extremely low Low Moderate Non-LMI

40

Yes No Yes No

3.49$       36.06$    

Extremely low Low Moderate Non-LMI

40

Yes No Yes No

3.49$       20.00$    

4

Extremely low Low Moderate Non-LMI

40

Yes No Yes No

3.49$       19.23$    

Extremely low Low Moderate Non-LMI

40

Yes No Yes No

3.49$       10.50$    

Extremely low Low Low Non-LMI

20

Yes No Yes No

11.00$    

Extremely low Low Low Non-LMI

40

Yes No Yes No

10.25$    

17.5fte's /9.5 fte LMI 48.86$     361.36$  ###### 417.20$  

Sales 

Loader 

Driver 

Helper 

39.55$                                    

23.49$                                    

22.72$                                    

13.99$                                    

14.49$                                    

13.74$                                    

Certification:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

________________________________________, certify 

that the employment information is true and accurate.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

Company Representative must sign.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

Average base wage: $20.65/hr.

Average benefits:      $  2.79/hr

Total average wage: $ 23.44/hr

*Type of Jobs Created Code:  (1) Manager (2) Professional (3) Technician (4) Sales (5) Office & Clerical (6) Craft workers (skilled) (7) Operatives (semi-skilled) (8) Laborers (unskilled) (9) Service Workers

Operator 

Maintenance 



City of Freeport, Minnesota 

Resolution 2013-016 

 
Liquor Licenses 

 

It is hereby resolved by the City of Freeport, Minnesota that: 
 

WHEREAS; the City of Freeport Ordinance 1200 regulates licensing of liquor establishments in the City of Freeport;  

THEREFORE; Freeport City Council approves the renewal of the following licenses subject to the terms set forth in 

Minnesota Statutes and Freeport City Code 1200 for the period of July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014: 

 

 

Licensee Name:  Freeport Black Sox Inc. 

Trade Name:   Freeport Black Sox 

Licensed Premise:  1000 1
st
 Avenue South 

License(s) Approved: 3.2% On sale 

 

Licensee Name:  Ackie’s Pioneer Inn Inc. 

Trade Name:   Ackies Pioneer Inn 

Licensed Premise:  123 Main Street East (includes outdoor patio area) 

License(s) Approved: Combination License: Off Sale, On Sale, Sunday 

 

Licensee Name:  Freeport Softball Club Inc. 

Trade Name:   Freeport Recreational Club 

Licensed Premise:  307 7
th
 Street Southeast 

License(s) Approved: On Sale, Sunday 

 

Licensee Name:  Middendorf, Janet Mae 

Trade Name:   Corner Pub & Grill 

Licensed Premise:  103 1
st
 Avenue North 

License(s) Approved: Combination License: Off Sale, On Sale, Sunday 

 

 

Adoption by the City Council of the City of Freeport on this 28
th

 day of May, 2013. 

 

 

 

               ____________________________________ 

                       Matthew Worms, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:         

 

         ____________________________________ 

                                                  Mason Schirmer, Clerk-Treasurer 



CITY OF FREEPORT, MINNESOTA 
RESOLUTION 2013-017 

 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING COMBINATION OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 104 2
ND

 STREET 
NORTHEAST 

 
WHEREAS, Mr. Daniel Bueckers (Applicant) submitted a request for a minor subdivision to combine Lot 6 
at 104 2

nd
 Street Northeast with TRACT “A”, thereby creating one lot; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed lot combination is illustrated in the Certificate of Survey attached hereto as 
EXHIBIT A; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Section 11 of the Freeport Subdivision Ordinance provides for minor subdivisions of real 
property; and,  
 
WHEREAS, a the Applicants proposes a ‘minor subdivision’ in that (a) only one (1) lot will result from the 
combination, (b) the combination will not involve a new street or road, and (c) the combination will not 
precipitate the extension of municipal facilities or public improvements; and, 
 
WHEREAS, minor subdivisions are exempt from platting requirements contained in the Freeport 
Subdivision Ordinance; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Freeport Subdivision Ordinance allows the City Council to consider approval of a minor 
subdivision following a review and recommendation of the Planning Commission; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council is the planning authority in Freeport (a separate Planning Commission 
doesn’t exist); and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the lot combination request and has made the following 
findings: 

 
1. The lots to be combined are located within the C-1 Commercial District. 

 
2. The lot combination will result in a conforming lot within the C-1 Commercial District. 

 
3. The proposed lot combination does not result in additional demand for public roadways and/or 

utility extensions.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF FREEPORT THAT: The City Council of the 
City of Freeport hereby approves combination of Lot 7 at 104 2

nd
 Street Northeast and TRACT “A” into a 

single lot as illustrated on the Certificate of Survey attached hereto as “EXHIBIT A” and dated May 14, 
2013. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the combination of TRACT “A” resulting from the aforementioned lot 
combination at 104 2

nd
 Street Northeast is hereby approved, contingent on the Property Owner recording 

the combination at the Stearns County Recorder’s Office. 
 
DATED THIS 28

th
 DAY OF MAY, 2013 

 
Motion by: 
 
Second by: 
 
Council members voting in favor: (list those approving) 
 



Opposed or abstained: (list) 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 

 
CITY OF FREEPORT 
 
                                                     
Matt Worms, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
                                              
Mason Schirmer, City Clerk-Treasurer 







CITY OF FREEPORT, MINNESOTA 
RESOLUTION 2013-018 

 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING COMBINATION OF LOTS LOCATED AT 107 4
TH

 STREET NORTHWEST 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Tom Blommel (Applicant) submitted a request for a minor subdivision to combine Lot 3 at 
107 4

th
 Street Northwest with TRACT “A”, thereby creating one lot; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed lot combination is illustrated in the Certificate of Survey attached hereto as 
EXHIBIT A; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Section 11 of the Freeport Subdivision Ordinance provides for minor subdivisions of real 
property; and,  
 
WHEREAS, a the Applicants proposes a ‘minor subdivision’ in that (a) only one (1) lots will result from the 

combination, (b) the combination will not involve a new street or road, and (c) the combination will not precipitate the 

extension of municipal facilities or public improvements; and, 
 
WHEREAS, minor subdivisions are exempt from platting requirements contained in the Freeport Subdivision 

Ordinance; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Freeport Subdivision Ordinance allows the City Council to consider approval of a minor subdivision 

following a review and recommendation of the Planning Commission; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council is the planning authority in Freeport (a separate Planning Commission doesn’t exist); 

and,  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the lot combination request and has made the following 
findings: 

 
1. The lots to be combined are located within the R-1 Single and Two Family Residential District. 

 
2. The lot combination will result in a conforming lot within the R-1 District. 

 
3. The proposed lot combination does not result in additional demand for public roadways and/or 

utility extensions.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF FREEPORT THAT: The City Council of the 
City of Freeport hereby approves combination of Lot 3 at 107 4

th
 Street Northwest with TRACT “A” into a 

single lot as illustrated on the Certificate of Survey attached hereto as “EXHIBIT A” and dated May 9, 
2013. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the combination of ‘TRACT A’ resulting from the aforementioned lot 
combination at 107 4

th
 Street Northwest is hereby approved, contingent on the Property Owner recording 

the combination at the Stearns County Recorder’s Office. 
 
DATED THIS 28

th
 DAY OF MAY, 2013 

 
Motion by: 
 
Second by: 
 
Council members voting in favor: (list those approving) 

 
Opposed or abstained: (list) 
 



ATTEST: 
 
 

 
CITY OF FREEPORT 
 
                                                     
Matt Worms, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
                                              
Mason Schirmer, City Clerk-Treasurer 







 
 
 
 
May 28, 2013 
 
 
 
Trudi Witkowski 
Minnesota Department of Health 
Drinking Water Protection Section 
Source Water Protection Unit 
P.O. Box 64975 
St. Paul, Minnesota 55164 
 
Dear Trudi Witkowski: 
 
Re: City of Freeport Wellhead Protection plan, Part 1 
 
In accordance with the Minnesota Protection Rule (part 4720.5330, subpart 1), the City of Freeport 
formally requests that the Minnesota Department of Health review our enclosed Wellhead Protection 
Plan, Part 1, for approval. The City of Freeport has reviewed and approved Part 1 of the plan on May 28, 
2013. 
 
We thank you for your assistance and look forward to receiving your comments. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Mason Schirmer, Clerk-Treasurer 
City of Freeport 















































memo 

 

City of Freeport 

To: City Council 

From: Mason Schirmer 

Date: 5/22/2013 

Re: Replacing a lawnmower 

Comments: 
 

Background: The lawnmower being discussed was purchased in 2003. During the November 27, 2012 
Regular City Council Meeting, PWD Jon Stueve said he would collect bids on the purchase of a new 
lawnmower. I conferred with the League of MN Cities regarding disposal/sale considerations. 
 
Purchase of new mower: Purchase of a new mower will be done after a motion authorizing the 
purchase passes. 
 
Disposal of old mower: Sale of the old mower will be done after a motion authorizing its sale passes. 
To comply with Minnesota Statute 15.054 (see below), the sale should involve publishing notice and 
receiving sealed offers for 10 days. Then offer the mower to the whomever submits the highest offer. 
 
 
Minnesota Statute 
15.054 SALE OR PURCHASE OF STATE PROPERTY; PENALTY. 
No officer or employee of the state or any of its political subdivisions shall sell or procure for sale or 
possess or control for sale to any other officer or employee of the state or subdivision, as appropriate, 
any property or materials owned by the state or subdivision except pursuant to conditions provided in 
this section. Property or materials owned by the state or a subdivision and not needed for public 
purposes, may be sold to an employee of the state or subdivision after reasonable public notice at a 
public auction or by sealed response, if the employee is not directly involved in the auction or process 
pertaining to the administration and collection of sealed responses. Requirements for reasonable 
public notice may be prescribed by other law or ordinance so long as at least one week's published 
notice is specified. An employee of the state or a political subdivision may purchase no more than one 
motor vehicle from the state at any one auction. A person violating the provisions of this section is 
guilty of a misdemeanor. This section shall not apply to the sale of property or materials acquired or 
produced by the state or subdivision for sale to the general public in the ordinary course of business. 
Nothing in this section shall prohibit an employee of the state or a political subdivision from selling or 
possessing for sale public property if the sale or possession for sale is in the ordinary course of 
business or normal course of the employee's duties. 
 

  



F:\data\15542\001\Memos\Office Memorandum re OML Concerns.docx 

 

1015 W. St. Germain St., Ste. 300, P.O. Box 1497 
St. Cloud, Minnesota 56302-1497 

Telephone 320-251-6700, Fax 320-656-3500 

 

 

Memorandum 

To: Freeport City Clerk 

From: Adam A. Ripple 

Re: Open Meeting Law Concerns 

Our File: 15542.001 

Date: May 23, 2013 

You have indicated that you have concerns about current practices related to communication 

between council members outside of public meetings. You have asked that our office provide guidance 

related to serial communications and the consequences for violations of the open meeting law. You have 

also inquired about who has standing to report and enforce violations. 

 

OPEN MEETING LAW GENERALLY 

 

In general, the open meeting law (Minnesota Statute 13D) requires that public business be 

conducted at open, public meetings. The open meeting law, together with the government data practices 

act (Minnesota Statute 13), establishes a tremendous presumption in Minnesota of an open and 

transparent government. These two laws work in tandem with each other to ensure that city business does 

not happen in secret and that the public has the ability to observe and be fully informed. 

 

 Any time a quorum of the council discusses city business that constitutes a “meeting” under the 

open meeting law. The law covers any discussion about city business, not just voting on official actions. 

The law applies to in-person gatherings as well as telephone and email communication, and serial 

conversations. All meetings require advance notice to the public and, with a few exceptions, must be open 

to the public. Additionally, discussing inappropriate items of business in a closed meeting (such as 

discussing unrelated public infrastructure matters in a meeting closed for an employee performance 

review) can also violate the open meeting law. 

 

SERIAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 

Serial communications are probably the most common violations of the open meeting law. An 

example of a serial communication would be where council member A talks to council member B on the 

phone about a city issue, B then emails council member C about that issue, and C sends a text message to 

A. Polling of a collective majority of the council by any council member outside of a council meeting to 

find out how they’ll vote on an issue, is a clear violation. Serial communication can occur through various 

medias—in-person discussions, written correspondence, telephone calls, emails, text messages, or even 

postings on social media such as Facebook. An open meeting law violation can arise through any of these 

forms of communication. Electronic communications (email, text message, and social media) between 

council members are particularly risky due to the ease in which they can be forwarded or replied to all. 



F:\data\15542\001\Memos\Office Memorandum re OML Concerns.docx 

All of these forms of communication, even if sent from private accounts or personal phones, could also be 

subject to disclosure under the data practices act and become evidence of violations. 

 

CONSEQUENCES FOR VIOLATIONS 

 

The penalties for open meeting law violations are fairly significant. Both the individual and the 

City are exposed. Any individual who violates the open meeting law is personally responsible for a $300 

fine. If an elected official is found to have violated the open meeting law three times, the official is 

removed from office. In addition to the personal penalties, the City could be required to pay the costs and 

legal expenses for any party that sues the City for violations of the open meeting law.  

 

Violations of the open meeting law are enforced through district court. Anyone can sue the City 

for open meeting law violations; media sources are the most frequent plaintiffs but frustrated residents are 

also common plaintiffs. The reimbursement of cost for successful plaintiffs creates some incentive for 

people to sue. While the League of Minnesota Cities does provide some insurance defense for open 

meeting violations, the City still has the potential to be on the hook for significant costs if found to have 

violated the law. In addition to the personal penalties and the financial costs to the City, open meeting law 

violations undermine the trust of City residents and cast a dark cloud over city government. 

 

BEST PRACTICES 

 

 In working with numerous cities as the city attorney, we have identified a number of best 

practices for cities and council members to avoid open meeting law violations: 

 

1. When in doubt about whether a gathering is a meeting or whether city business will be discussed, 

be conservative and post it as a meeting. Special meetings simply require 3 days’ posted notice. 

Although the law is unclear, don’t count the day of the meeting as part of the 3 days. 

2. When in doubt about whether a communication will violate the open meeting law, err on the side 

of caution and save the discussion for an open meeting. 

3. Council members should avoid discussing city business with each other outside of council 

meetings. Serial conversations can occur very easily since the open meeting law applies to any 

discussion of city business. 

4. Only use electronic communication such as email for receiving information for city staff. Never 

hit “reply all.” Council members should not email each other; once an email is sent, it is out of 

your control and can easily be forwarded which may violate the open meeting law. 

5. If council members have questions, consult the city clerk or city attorney for guidance. 

 

 

 

 



Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., 1200 25th Avenue South, P.O. Box 1717, St. Cloud, MN 56302-1717 

SEH is an equal opportunity employer   |   www.sehinc.com   |   320.229.4300   |   800.572.0617   |   888.908.8166 fax 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mr. Mason Schirmer 
 City of Freeport 
 
FROM: David Blommel, PE 
 City Engineer 
 
DATE: May 23, 2013 
 
RE: City Council Update –May 28, 2013 
 Freeport, Minnesota 
 SEH No. FREEP GEN   16 
 

Waste Water Treatment Ponds 
 
Councilor Atkinson questioned the status of the waste water treatment ponds at the last meeting; he 
noticed a settlement in the east pond berm of the Cell #1. This is the same location that was repaired in 
2003. As Mayor Worms noted during the meeting, he thought there was a layer of peat under that 
particular location in the pond, and that this had the potential to be an ongoing problem. 
 
In my research, I contacted Pete Carlson and he confirmed the discussion regarding compressible soils 
under the berm. At the time, a decision was made not to overbuild the berm, with fear of further 
compressing the material below. At the very least, the settlement needs to be monitored to insure the 
following things are not happening: 
 

 Water Level Above Rip-Rap (could potentially erode the clay berm) 
 Less than 2 feet of freeboard between the high water level and the top of the berm. 

 
If either of these items are happening, the MPCA should be consulted to ensure compliance with the 
discharge permit. We can discuss the next step, and the options we have at the meeting 
 
Well Pumps 
 
Now that the operations at the new tower have stabilized, we are ready to replace the pumps in both wells. 
As a portion of the Rural Development Project, these pumps will be funded via remaining grant funds. 
We anticipate obtaining quotes for the work from local well drillers. At this time I am proposing receiving 
quotes from 3 companies: 
 

 Atkinson Well & Pump LTD – Freeport 
 Traut Companies – Waite Park 
 Wheels Water Service – Melrose 

 
Requested Action – Authorize staff to request quotes for pump replacement. 
 
  



City Council Update 
August 24, 2012 
Page 2 
 
 
Audit 
 
We have been working with KDV to provide an inventory of utilities and streets in Freeport, and to assign 
them a present value. Through my research, we determined that the value of the utilities in their existing 
condition. I put together a quick summary of the findings in the table below. The streets are assumed to 
have a 25 year design life, and utilities a 50 year design life. No value is assigned to streets owned by 
Stearns County. 
 

  
Current 
Value 

Value if 
new 

Streets  $2,096,300 $4,627,000

Water   $1,749,400 $2,520,700

Sewer  $1,421,200 $2,121,800

Storm Sewer  $520,500 $638,700

Lift Stations, Water Treatment 
Wastewater Treatment  $2,820,000 $4,240,000

Total  $8,607,400 $14,148,200
 
ISO Rating 
 
After the dramatic improvements to the water system over the past few years, now might be a good time 
to consider having the City’s ISO rating reviewed. The company that is responsible for producing these 
ratings did state that Freeport’s ISO rating does have potential to improve, based on the larger mains and 
increased tower capacity.   
 
The rating company does not charge the City for doing a review. The only costs associated with the study 
would be related to SEH updating the water model with as-built flow rates. Since the Audit calculations 
were completed in less time than anticipated, we propose doing this work under the amendment approved 
at the January meeting. Rural Development has been consulted and approves of this change without a 
formal amendment. 
 
If you would like to proceed, the city will need to send a letter briefly describing the major improvements 
to the system made with the project. We can certainly work with staff to get this going to the right people. 
 
I plan to attend your council meeting on Tuesday evening. If you have any questions prior to the meeting, 
please feel free to contact me. You can reach me by email at dblommel@sehinc.com or directly by phone 
at 320.229.4349. 
 
 
c: Scott Lange, SEH 
p:\fj\f\freep\common\_ council mtg\2013\052813\m council update 052313.docx 












	1 Agenda
	1 Minutes Regular Mtg 2013 - 04-30-13 - DRAFT
	2 Minutes Special Mtg 2013 - 05-11-13 - DRAFT
	3 Claims
	4 Fischer Mediation Memo
	5 Admin Assis Update Memo
	6 Resolution 2013-016 - Liquor Licensing
	7 Whirlwind Building Components
	7 Whirlwind Final Report
	8 Resolution 2016-016 Liquor Licenses
	9 Resolution 2013-017 - Bueckers
	9 Bueckers Minor Subdivision Request
	9 Bueckers Survey
	10 Resolution 2013-018 - Blommel
	10 Blommel Minor Subdivision Request
	10 Blommel Survey
	11 Wellhead Protection Letter
	11 Wellhead Protection Plan
	12 Lawnmower Replacement
	13 Open Meeting Law
	14 SEH Pond Memo
	15 MAOSC
	16 CapX2020 Notice
	17 Community Development Event

